p ;‘;".J//////
= ALAMEDA

County Transportation
Commission

Commission Chair

Supervisor Scott Haggerty, District 1

Commission Vice Chair

Councimember Rebecca Kaplan,

City of Oakland

AC Transit
Director Elsa Ortiz

Alameda County

Supervisor Richard Valle, District 2
Supervisor Wilma Chan, District 3
Supervisor Nate Miley, District 4
Supervisor Keith Carson, District 5

BART
Director Thomas Blalock

City of Alameda
Mayor Marie Gilmore

City of Albany
Vacant

City of Berkeley
Councimember Laurie Capitelli

City of Dublin
Mayor Tim Sbranti

City of Emeryville
Vice Mayor Ruth Atkin

City of Fremont
Mayor Bill Harrison

City of Hayward
Councimember Marvin Peixoto

City of Livermore
Mayor John Marchand

City of Newark
Councimember Luis Freitas

City of Oakland
Vice Mayor Larry Reid

City of Piedmont
Mayor Margaret Fujioka

City of Pleasanton
Mayor Jerry Thorne

City of San Leandro
Councimember Michael Gregory

City of Union City

Mayor Carol Dutra-Vernaci

Executive Director
Arthur L. Dao

Meeting Notice

1111 Broadway, Suite 800, Oakland, CA 74507 510.208.7400 www.AlamedaCTC.org

|-580 EXpress Lane

Policy Committee

Monday, July 14, 2014, 10:00 a.m.
1111 Broadway, Suite 800
Oakland, CA 94607

Mission Statement

The mission of the Alameda County Transportation Commission
(Alameda CTC) is to plan, fund, and deliver transportation programs and
projects that expand access and improve mobility to foster a vibrant and
livable Alameda County.

Public Comments

Public comments are limited to 3 minutes. tems not on the agenda are
covered during the Public Comment section of the meeting, and items
specific to an agenda item are covered during that agenda item discussion.
If you wish to make a comment, fill out a speaker card, hand it to the clerk of
the Commission, and wait until the chair calls your name. When you are
summoned, come to the microphone and give your name and comment.

Recording of Public Meetings

The executive director or desighee may designate one or more locations from
which members of the public may broadcast, photograph, video record, or
tape record open and public meetings without causing a distraction. If the
Commission or any committee reasonably finds that noise, illumination, or
obstruction of view related to these activities would persistently disrupt the
proceedings, these activities must be discontinued or restricted as determined
by the Commission or such committee (CA Government Code Sections
54953.5-54953.6).

Reminder

Please turn off your cell phones during the meeting. Please do not wear
scented products so individuals with environmental sensitivities may attend
the meeting.

Glossary of Acronyms

A glossary that includes frequently used acronyms is available on the
Alameda CTC website at www.AlamedaCTC.org/app_pages/view/8081.



http://www.alamedactc.org/app_pages/view/8081

Location Map

% Alameda CTC
1111 Broadway, Suite 800
Oakland, CA 94607

Alameda CTC is accessible by multiple
transportation modes. The office is
conveniently located near the 12th Street/City
Center BART station and many AC Transit bus
lines. Bicycle parking is available on the street
and in the BART station as well as in electronic
lockers at 14th Street and Broadway near
Frank Ogawa Plaza (requires purchase of key
card from bikelink.org).

¢y Alameda CTC

BART
¥ Transit

o)
@t Bike parking cef?ferp
s

@ Auto parking %2

Garage parking is located beneath City Center, accessible via entrances on 14th Street between
1300 Clay Street and 505 14th Street buildings, or via 11th Street just past Clay Street.
To plan your trip to Alameda CTC visit www.511.0rg.

Accessibility

Public meetings at Alameda CTC are wheelchair accessible under the Americans with Disabilities
Act. Guide and assistance dogs are welcome. Call 510-893-3347 (Voice) or 510-834-6754 (TTD)
five days in advance to request a sign-language interpreter.

The Alameda CTC meeting calendar lists all public meetings and is available at
www.AlamedaCTC.org/events/upcoming/now.

Meeting Schedule

Paperless Policy

On March 28, 2013, the Alameda CTC Commission approved the implementation of paperless
meeting packet distribution. Hard copies are available by request only. Agendas and all
accompanying staff reports are available electronically on the Alameda CTC website at

www.AlamedaCTC.org/events/month/now.

Connect with Alameda CTC

www.AlamedaCTC.org facebook.com/AlamedaCTC

Il @Alamedactc
youtube.com/user/AlamedaCTC



http://www.511.org/
http://www.alamedactc.org/events/upcoming/now
http://www.alamedactc.org/events/month/now
http://www.alamedactc.org/
http://www.facebook.com/AlamedaCTC
https://twitter.com/AlamedaCTC
http://www.youtube.com/user/AlamedaCTC

1-580 Express Lane Policy Committee

NI 4 Meeting Agenda
= ALAMEDA

F‘.'fé County Transportation

Monday, July 14, 2014, 10:00 a.m.*

*Orimmediately following the I-680 Sunol SMART Carpool Lane Joint Powers Authority meeting

’/,’. Commission 1111 Broadway, Suite 800, Oakland, CA 94407 510.208.7400 . www.AlamedaCTC.org
Sv, Mme
b 4
BANNN\N
Chair: Mayor John Marchand, City of Livermore
Vice Chair: Supervisor Nate Miley, Alameda County District 4
Commissioners: Scott Haggerty, Tim Sbranti, Jerry Thorne
1. Roll Call Staff Liaison: Stewart D. Ng
Executive Director: Arthur L. Dao
2. Public Comment Clerk: Vanessa Lee

3. Consent Calendar Page A/l
3.1. June 9, 2014 |-580 Express Lane PC Meeting Minutes 1 A
Recommendation: Approve the June 9, 2014 meeting minutes.
4. Regular Matters
4.1. |-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle Lane Projects (PN 720.5 3
/724.4/724.5): Monthly Progress Report
4.2. |-580 Express Lane Projects (PN 720.4/724.1): 13
Monthly Progress Report
4.3. |-580 Express Lanes Education and Outreach Update 25

5. Committee Member Reports (Verbal)
6. Staff Reports (Verbal)

7. Adjournment

Next Meeting: September 8, 2014

All items on the agenda are subject to action and/or change by the Commission.

RA\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140714\1580_ PC_Agenda_20140714.docx

(A = Action Item; | = Information Item)


http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14159/3.1_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14160/4.1_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14160/4.1_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14161/4.2_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14161/4.2_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/14162/4.3_Combo.pdf

This page intentionally left blank



1-580 Express Lane Policy Committee
Meeting Minutes

sty

.. . /

= ALAMEDA  Monday, June 9, 2014, 10:00 a.m. 3.1
= County Transportation

“, Commission 1111 Broadway. Suite 800, Oakland, CA 94607 . PH: (510) 208-7400 . www.AlamedaCTC.org

’
by I‘.___

TN

1. Roll Call
The Clerk conducted a roll call. All committee members were present with the exception
of Commissioner Nate Miley.

Subsequent to the roll call
Commissioner Nate Miley arrived during item 4.1.

2. Public Comment
There were no public comments.

3. Consent Calendar
3.1 May 12, 2014 |1-580 Express Lane PC Meeting Minutes
Commissioner Haggerty motioned to approve the consent calendar. Commissioner
Thorne seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously (Miley absent).

4. Regular Matters
4.1 1-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle Lane Projects (PN 720.5/724.4/724.5): Monthly
Progress Report
Stefan Garcia presented the 1-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle lane projects
monthly progress report. He provided an update on the status of the construction of
all projects as well as providing financial highlights and a schedule for completion.

This Item was for information only.
4.2.1-580 Express (HOT) Lane Projects (PN 720.4/724.1): Monthly Progress Report

Gary Sidhu presented the |-580 Express Lane Projects. Gary provided a review of
upcoming activities including public outreach and contracting. He also provided
information on continuous access implementation specifically electronic toll design
and toll ordinances. Gary also covered the both the express lane schedule and |-580
Corridor Schedule and he concluded by covering express lane funding.

This item was for information only.

5. Committee Member Reports
There were no committee member reports.

6. Staff Reports
There were no staff reports.

7. Adjournment/ Next Meeting

RA\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I1580_PC\20140714\3.1_Minutes\3.1_I580PC_Minutes_20140609.docx

Page 1



The next meeting is:

Date/Time: Monday, July 14, 2014 @ 10:00 a.m.
Location: Alameda CTC Offices, 1111 Broadway, Suite 800, Oakland, CA 94607

Attested by:

Vanessa Lee,
Clerk of the Commission

RA\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140714\3.1_Minutes\3.1_I580PC_Minutes_20140609.docx

Page 2



“p'//////
ALAMEDA  Memorandum 4.1

County Transportation

Ve Commission 1111 Broadway, Suite 800, Oakland, CA 94607  «  PH: (510) 208-7400  «  www.AlamedaCTC.org
BUNNN\N
DATE: July 7, 2014
SUBJECT: [-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle Lane Projects (PN 720.5 / 724.4

/ 724.5): Monthly Progress Report

RECOMMENDATION: Receive a monthly status update on the 1-580 Corridor High
Occupancy Vehicle Lane Projects.

Summary

The Alameda CTC is sponsoring the I-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) Lane
Projects along the I-580 corridor in the Tri-Valley. This monthly progress report provides a
status update of the various projects currently underway in the corridor. This item is for
information only.

Background

The Alameda CTC is the sponsor for the 1-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV)
Lane Projects which include HOV lanes in the Eastbound and Westbound directions
between Pleasanton and Livermore. The projects provide increased capacity, safety and
efficiency for commuters and freight along the primary corridor connecting the Bay Area
with the Central Valley. In its role as project sponsor, the Alameda CTC has been working
in partnership with Caltrans, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), Alameda
County, and the cities of Livermore, Dublin, and Pleasanton to deliver the projects.

The 1-580 Corridor HOV Lane Projects will be completed with the construction of three final
projects in the Livermore Valley (two westbound HOV segments and one eastbound
auxiliary (AUX) lanes project). All of these projects are currently in construction and are
being administered by Caltrans. Construction activity began in March 2013 and the
project partners held a groundbreaking ceremony in June 2013.

Attached for the Committee’s review are the June 2014 progress reports for the 1-580
Eastbound HOV Lane Project (Segment 3 Aux Lanes) and the I-580 Westbound HOV Lane
Project (Segments 1 and 2).

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact.

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140714\4.1_580_HOV_Monthly_Update\4.1_I580HOV_Progress_Report.docx

Page 3



Attachments

A. I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane Project Monthly Progress Report (PN 720.5)
B. I-580 Westbound HOV Lane Projects Monthly Progress Report (PN 724.4/724.5)
C. I-580 Corridor HOV Lane Projects — Location Map

Staff Contact

Stewart Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and Projects

Stefan Garcia, Project Controls Team

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140714\4.1_580_HOV_Monthly_Update\4.1_|580HOV_Progress_Report.docx

Page 4


mailto:stewartng@alamedactc.org
mailto:sgarcia@alamedactc.org

ATTACHMENT A 4 ] A
I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane Project (PN 720.5)
Monthly Progress Report
June 2014

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The Eastbound I-580 HOV Lane Project is completing one final construction segment,
Segment 3 Auxiliary (AUX) Lanes, between Hacienda Drive and Greenville Road. The
Project scope includes:
o Construction of auxiliary lanes from Isabel Avenue to First Street;
e Pavement width necessary for a double express (high occupancy toll lane
facility);
e Final lift of asphalt concrete (AC) pavement and striping for entire eastbound
project limits from Hacienda Drive to Portola Avenue;
¢ The soundwall that was deleted from the 1-580/Isabel Avenue Interchange
Project; and
¢ The widening of two bridges at Arroyo Las Positas in the eastbound direction.

CONSTRUCTION STATUS

Traffic Handling & Night Work

Construction activities include both day and night work. Significant work is involved in
rehabilitating the existing pavement which requires closing traffic lanes; however, no
complete freeway closures are anticipated. Due to heavy daytime traffic volumes,
closing traffic lanes in the daytime is not feasible. For this reason, pavement
rehabilitation work can only be done during nighttime hours. Night work will include
setting lane closures and shifting traffic lanes (placement of safety barrier (k-rail) and
striping work), existing pavement rehabilitation work (crack and seat, slab replacement
and overlay) and electrical work. Caltrans lane closure charts permit the contractor to
perform this work at night between 9pm and 4am. Work behind k-rail and all bridge
work is expected to occur during daytime hours.

Construction Challenges
Alameda CTC staff is working in close coordination with Caltrans to implement the
project within limited funding. Challenges and managed risks for this project include:
e Bird Nesting on structures and in adjacent field areas
¢ Installation of future express Lane components to facilitate express lane
completion. Project staff is working to combine HOV and express lane
construction work in a manner that will keep the single HOV lane open until the
double lane HOT/HOV express facility is completed

Completed Activities — 54% of the contract work was completed as of 5/20/14
Construction activities began in April 2013. Work completed to date includes:
e Las Positas Creek (EB and WB) bridge widening
e Widening of major box culvert at Arroyo Seco and modification of drainage
facilities. Creek diversion is removed and area restored.
e Several retaining walls on the outside edges of the freeway corridor

RA\AIaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140714\4.1_580_HOV_Monthly_Update\4.1A_I580EBHOVLaneStatusUpdate.doc

Page 5



Ongoing & Upcoming Activities
Caltrans maintains a project website
(http://www.dot.ca.gov/dist4/projects/i580wbhov/) and conducts public information
and outreach efforts in cooperation with Alameda CTC. Ongoing and upcoming work
activities include:

e Construct and backfill remaining retaining walls
Install Lighting and Traffic Operation Systems
Install infrastructure to support express lane operations
Complete Subgrade preparation and cement treated soll
Paving activities will occur between Hacienda Drive and Greenville Road from
May to October 2014

FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS
The 1-580 Eastbound HOV Project is funded through federal, state and local funds.

Funding Plan — SEGMENT 3

Project Funding Source ($ million)

Phase CMIA RM2 TVIC FED SHOPP Meas. B Total

PA&ED 0.02 0.02

PS&E 1.72 1.30 0.23 3.25

ROW 0.17 0.08 0.28 0.53

Construct 17.87 2.20 0.14 4.69 6.57 31.47,

Cap

Construct 2.53 1.12 0.10 0.71 4.46

Sup

Total 20.40 5.21 1.62 0.23 4.69 7.58 39.73
Total Project Cost: $39.7M

SCHEDULE STATUS

The Eastbound AUX Lane project between Hacienda Drive and Greenville Road was
advertised on July 9, 2012; bids were opened on October 5, 2012. Caltrans awarded
the contfract to OC Jones & Sons (with a bid 6.33 percent below the Engineer’s
Estimate) on November 16, 2012. With the inclusion of infrastructure to support express
lane operations, construction is now planned to complete in late 2015.

Project Approval December 2011 (A)
RTL May 2012 (A)

CTC Vote May 2012 (A)

Begin Construction November 2012 (A)
(Award)

End Construction October 2015 ()

RA\AIaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140714\4.1_580_HOV_Monthly_Update\4.1A_I580EBHOVLaneStatusUpdate.doc

Page 6


http://www.dot.ca.gov/dist4/projects/i580wbhov/

4.1B

ATTACHMENT B
1-580 Westbound HOV Lane Projects (PN 724.4/724.5)
Monthly Progress Report
June 2014

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The Westbound I-580 HOV Lane Project includes three segments:

e SEGMENT 1 - WB HOV Eastern Segment from Greenville Road to Isabel Avenue

e SEGMENT 2 - WB HOV Western Segment from Isabel Avenue to San Ramon Road

e SEGMENT 3 — Bridge widening at Arroyo Las Positas Creek. This work is included in the
construction contract for the EB HOV Lane Project (see Attachment A).

CONSTRUCTION STATUS — SEGMENTS 1 & 2

Traffic Handling & Night Work

Construction activities include both day and night work. Significant work is involved in
rehabilitating the existing pavement which requires closing traffic lanes; however, no
complete freeway closures are anticipated. Due to heavy daytime traffic volumes,
closing traffic lanes in the daytime is not feasible. For this reason, pavement
rehabilitation work can only be done during nighttime hours. Night work will include
setting lane closures and shifting traffic lanes (placement of safety barrier (k-rail) and
striping work), existing pavement rehabilitation work (crack and seat, slab replacement
and overlay) and electrical work. Caltrans lane closure charts permit the contractor to
perform this work at night between 9pm and 4am. Work behind k-rail and all bridge
work is expected to occur during daytime hours.

Construction Challenges
Alameda CTC staff is working in close coordination with Caltrans to implement the
project within limited funding. Challenges and managed risks for the project include:

SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment)

e Installation of future express Lane components to facilitate express lane
completion. Project staff is working to combine HOV and express lane
construction work in a manner that will allow the HOV/express lane facility to be
opened concurrently

e Additional widening of the North Livermore Avenue structure to accommodate
express lane width requirements

¢ New retaining wall to account for recent, accelerated erosion within the Arroyo
Seco Creek adjacent to the widening necessary for westbound lanes

e Coordination with concurrent Caltrans projects in the area to reduce cost

e Bird Nesting on structures and in adjacent field areas

e Revision of pavement slab replacements to prioritize in areas most in need

SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment)
¢ Installation of future express lane components to facilitate express lane
completion. Project staff is working to combine HOV and express lane

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140714\4.1_580_HOV_Monthly_Update\4.1B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc

Page 7



construction work in a manner that will allow the HOV/express lane facility to be
opened concurrently

Elimination of a retaining wall to reduce project cost

Changes to the pavement cross section to reduce project cost

Bird Nesting on structures and in adjacent field areas

Revision of pavement slab replacements to prioritize in areas most in need

Completed Activities
Construction activities began in March 2013. Work completed to date includes:

SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment) - 49% of the contract work was completed as of 5/20/14
e North Livermore Ave bridge widening
Bridge widening at Arroyo Las Positas (2 locations)
Arroyo Seco RCB culvert extension
Construct major drainage facilities (e.g. double box culvert)
Concrete pavement slab replacements
Temporary striping, shift traffic lanes and placement of k-rail on outside shoulder
from Greenville to Airway

SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment - 47% of the contract work was completed as of 5/20/14
e Stage 1 median widening from Airway to Hacienda
e BART Barrier modifications
e Temporary striping, shift traffic lanes and placement of safety barrier (k-rail) to
allow for Stage 2 outside widening
Bridge widening at Dougherty Undercrossing near Dublin BART station
Bridge widening at Tassajara Creek
Precast slab pavement replacements
K-rail placed for Stage 2 from Airway to just east of Tassajara Creek

Ongoing & Upcoming Activities

Caltrans maintains a project website
(http://www.dot.ca.gov/dist4/projects/i580wbhov/) and conducts public information
and outreach efforts in cooperation with Alameda CTC. Ongoing and upcoming work
activities include:

SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment)
e Excavate and construct retaining walls and soil nail walls
Soundwall construction at Vasco Road
Install Lighting and Traffic Operation Systems
Install infrastructure to support express lane operations
Median widening for HOV lane
Paving of ramps and conform areas will begin at Greenville and progress
westward starting in May 2014

SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment)

Completion of Stage 2 outside widening
Installation of drainage systems

Median barrier reconfiguration

Install Lighting and Traffic Operation Systems

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140714\4.1_580_HOV_Monthly_Update\4.1B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc

Page 8


http://www.dot.ca.gov/dist4/projects/i580wbhov/

e Install infrastructure to support express lane operations
e Final paving and striping of westbound I-580 will occur between Airway
Boulevard and Hacienda Drive from May to October 2014

FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS
The 1-580 Westbound HOV Lane Project is funded through federal, state and local funds
available for the I-580 Corridor. The total project cost is $143.9M, comprised of

programmed (committed) funding from federal, state and local sources.

Funding Plan - SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment)

Project Funding Source ($ million)

Phase CMIA RM2 TCRP FED SHOPP Meas.B  TVIC Total
Scoping 0.53 0.04 0.57
PA&ED 4.38 4.38
PS&E 2.29 0.11 0.15 1.69 0.42 4.66
ROW 1.16 0.04 1.20
Utilities 0.32 0.32
Const Cap 35.34 5.92 6.19 13.54 1.60 62.59
Const. Sup 6.52 1.59 1.08 92.19
Total 41.86 8.68 7.66 6.34 13.54 4.41 0.42 82.91

Total Project Cost: $82.9M

Funding Plan — SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment)

Project Funding Source ($ million)

Phase CMIA RM2 TCRP FED SHOPP Meas. B TVIC Total
Scoping 0.36 0.02 0.38
PA&ED 2.92 2.92
PS&E 1.53 0.07 0.10 1.12 0.28 3.10
ROW 0.77 0.03 0.80
Utilities 0.21 0.21
Const Cap 33.73 2.49 9.61 0.10 0.30 46.23
Const. Sup 6.75 0.58 7.33
Total 40.48 5.79 2.58 0.10 9.61 1.83 0.58 60.97

Total Project Cost: $61.0M

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140714\4.1_580_HOV_Monthly_Update\4.1B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc

Page ¢



SCHEDULE STATUS

SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment):

The Westbound HOV Eastern Segment from Greenville Road to Isabel Avenue was
advertised on July 16, 2012 and bids were opened on September 19, 2012. Caltrans
awarded the contract to Ghilotti Construction Company, Inc. (with a bid 16.33 percent
below Engineer’s Estimate) on November 20, 2012. With the inclusion of infrastructure to
support express lane operations, construction is now planned to complete in late 2015.

Project Approval January 2010 (A)
RTL May 2012 (A)

CTC Vote May 2012 (A)

Begin Construction (award) November 2012 (A)
End Construction December 2015 (T)

SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment):

The Westbound HOV Western Segment from Isabel Avenue to San Ramon Road was
advertised on June 25, 2012 and bids were opened on August 29, 2012. Caltrans
awarded the contract to DeSilva Gates Construction (with a bid 23.32 percent below
Engineer’s Estimate) on October 29, 2012. With the inclusion of infrastructure to support
express lane operations, construction is now planned to complete in mid 2015.

Project Approval January 2010 (A)
RTL April 2012 (A)
CTC Vote April 2012 (A)

Begin Construction (award) October 2012 (A)

End Construction July 2015 (T)

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140714\4.1_580_HOV_Monthly_Update\4.1B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc

Page 10



(S'¥T/ Nd - 1503) 8UDT AOH PUNOQSOM 085

(1'¥2/ Nd - 1S9M) SUDT AOH PUNOGISSM 085-] I

(e1e|dwioD) 8uLT AOH PUNOQISLT 08S-|

‘l.-u/

UOISSILILIOD “z
uolppodsup.] AJunoD

RIS

) 8UDT XNV PUNOCISDT O8S-] I

S Vasco Rd

"‘Greenvil)é Rd

N Vasco Rd

podiy [pdidiuniy
SIOULIBAI
ADMIY

7. ? VAN J ) S

uligand

Dougherty Réﬁ

N Livermore Ave

dpw uoypo07 - sjoalold aUDT AOH 1op1IOD owm-_



sgarcia
Sticky Note
Accepted set by sgarcia

sgarcia
Sticky Note
Accepted set by sgarcia


This page intentionally left blank.

Page 12



“p'//////
ALAMEDA  Memorandum 4.2

County Transportation

%, ~Commission 1111 Broadway, Suite 800, Oakland, CA 94607  +  PH: (510) 208-7400 «  www.AlamedaCTC.org
A

oL T

Yoo, T “\\\\

DATE: July 7, 2014
SUBJECT: I-580 Express Lane Projects (PN 720.4 / 724.1): Monthly Progress Report

RECOMMENDATION: Receive a monthly status update on the [-580 Express Lane Projects.

Summary

The Alameda CTC is sponsoring the Express Lane Projects along the 1-580 corridor in the Tri-
Valley. The Eastbound I-580 Express Lane Project will convert the newly constructed
eastbound High Occupancy Vehicle Lane (HOV) lane, from Hacienda Drive to Greenville
Road, to a double express lane facility. The I-580 Westbound Express Lane Project will
convert the westbound HOV lane (currently under construction) to a single express lane
facility from west of Greenville Road to west of the San Ramon Road/Foothill Road
Overcrossing in Dublin/Pleasanton.

The environmental and civil design work is complete for both eastbound and westbound.
Civil construction is being implemented through multiple contract change orders (CCQO’s)
to the on-going construction contracts. The 1-580 Eastbound and Westbound Express Lane
civil construction work will construct the necessary infrastructure, such as signing, sign
gantries for dynamic messaging and toll reading, electrical conduit for connecting power
and communication sources, and striping to accommodate the express lanes. The
System Integrator contractor will install the required communication equipment and
software. The express lane facility is scheduled to open for use in November 2015.

For detailed information on project funding, schedule and status of the Eastbound 1-580
Express Lane Project, Westbound 1-580 Express Lane Project and System Integration
activities, see Attachments A, B and C of this report. This item is for information only.

Background

I-580 Eastbound Express and 1-580 Westbound Express Projects have been combined into
one project for the civil construction phase. All the CCO’s for civil construction have
already been issued to the on-going construction contracts along [-580 (I-580 Westbound
HOV, I-580 Eastbound Auxiliary Lane and Freeway Performance Project). The benefit of
implementing CCO’s is to avoid working in the environmentally sensitive area, minimize
additional traffic disruptions to the traveling public, reduce or eliminate re-work and

RA\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I1580_PC\20140714\4.2_580_Express_Monthly_Update\4.2_I580Express_HOT_SI_ProgresskRpt.docx

Page 13



potentially finish construction sooner. Items included in already issued CCOs and under
consideration to be included in the potential future CCOs include:

e Electrical Conduit — across and along 1-580

e Service and controller cabinets

e Striping - stripe to final express lane configuration
¢ [nstall K-rail along median at sign locations

e Median concrete barrier

e Fiber Optics Cable

e Sign structures including tolling gantries, dynamic messaging signs, lighting
standards and other sign structures.

“Near Continuous” Access Configuration Status

Staff is currently moving forward with the concept of a “near continuous” (aka “more
open”) access configuration in lieu of “limited” access for the express lanes on the 1-580
corridor. The “near continuous” access configuration will eliminate the two foot buffer
between the express lane and the general purpose lanes except at “hot spots” or “safety
zones” such as between Hacienda and Fallon Road (eastbound) and Hacienda and 1-680
(westbound). To support the implementation of near continuous access, zone tolling and
automated toll violation enforcement strategies have been incorporated in the project
design.

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact.

Attachments
A. I-580 Eastbound Express Lane Project Monthly Progress Report
B [-580 Westbound Express Lane Project Monthly Progress Report
C. I-580 Express Lanes System Integration Monthly Progress Report
D I-580 Corridor Express Lane Projects — Location Map

Staff Contact

Stewart Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and Projects
Gary Sidhu, Project Controls Team

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\1580_PC\20140714\4.2_580_Express_Monthly_Update\4.2_|I580Express_HOT_S|_ProgressRpt.do
CX

Page 14


mailto:stewartng@alamedactc.org
mailto:gsidhu@alamedactc.org

4.2A

ATTACHMENT A
1-580 Eastbound Express Lane Project
Monthly Progress Report
July 2014

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The 1-580 Eastbound Express Lane Project will convert the newly constructed eastbound
HOV lane, from Hacienda Drive in Dublin/Pleasanton to Greenville Road in Livermore, to
a double express lane facility, a distance of approximately 11 miles.

PROJECT DELIVERY STATUS

¢ The environmental phase is complete

e Civil design is complete and combined with the westbound component as one
contract package. The civil construction is being implemented through CCO'’s
under the three |I-580 HOV lane projects currently in construction (I-580 Westbound
HOV Lane - West Segment, I-580 Westbound HOV Lane - East Segment and [-580
Eastbound HOV Lane - Segment 3 with Auxiliary Lanes). All the CCOs have been
issued to the contractors.

e Electronic toll system design is in progress.

RECENT ACTIVITIES

e Negotiated CCO'’s prices with the contractors

e Construction cooperative agreement amendments executed to implement tier 2
and 3 CCO work

e Completed Preliminary Design Document (PDD) for electronic toll system

UPCOMING ACTIVITIES

¢ Negofiate and execute various agreements

e Negotiate and process ETCC CCOs related to Vehicle Enforcement System

o Complete Detailed Design Document (DDD) for the electronic system design
POTENTIAL ISSUES/RISKS

The civil construction has to be completed by early March 2015 to allow ETCC to start
the electronic toll system equipment so that express lanes can be opened by
November 2015. This schedule is very aggressive. Staff will work closely with Caltrans and
ETCC to monitor progress and take appropriate actions as necessary.

FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS

See Attachment C for combined project funding and financial status.

RA\AIaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I1580_PC\2014071 4\4.2_580_Express_lv\onTth_UpdoTe\4.2A_I580EBHOTLcmeProjec‘rPtG)g@JTq.éc



SCHEDULE STATUS

I-580 Eastbound Express Lane Project Schedule:

Project Approval March 2014
Civil Design Completion April 2014

Begin Construction June 2014

End Construction November 2015
(Civil and System Integrator)

RA\AIaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I1580_PC\2014071 4\4.2_580_Express_lv\onTth_UpdoTe\4.2A_I580EBHOTLoneProjec‘rPtG)g@JTq.(éc



4.2B

ATTACHMENT B
I-580 Westbound Express Lane Project
Monthly Progress Report
July 2014

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The 1-580 Westbound Lane Project will convert the planned westbound HOV lane to a

single express lane facility from west of the Greenville Road Undercrossing in Livermore
to west of the San Ramon Road / Foothill Road Overcrossing in Dublin / Pleasanton, a

distance of approximately 14 miles.

PROJECT DELIVERY STATUS

¢ The environmental phase is complete

e Civil design is complete and combined with the eastbound component as one
contract package. The civil construction is being implemented through CCO's
under the three I-580 HOV lane projects currently in construction (I-580 Westbound
HOV Lane - West Segment, I-580 Westbound HOV Lane - East Segment and 1-580
Eastbound HOV Lane - Segment 3 with Auxiliary Lanes). All the CCOs have been
issued to the contractors.

e Electronic toll system design is in progress.

RECENT ACTIVITIES
e Negotiated CCO'’s prices with the contractors
e Construction cooperative agreement amendments executed to implement tier 2

and 3 CCO work
e Completed Preliminary Design Document (PDD) for electronic toll system

UPCOMING ACTIVITIES

e Negotiate and execute various agreements

e Negotiate and process ETCC CCOs related to Vehicle Enforcement System

e Complete Detailed Design Document (DDD) for the electronic system design
POTENTIAL ISSUES/RISKS

The civil construction has to be completed by early March 2015 to allow ETCC to start
installation of the electronic toll system equipment so that express lanes can be opened

by November 2015. This schedule is very aggressive. Staff will work closely with Caltrans
and ETCC to monitor progress and take appropriate actions as necessary.

R:A\AIaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140714\4.2_580_Express_Monthly_Update\4.2B_I580WBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc

Page 17



FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS

See Attachment C for combined project funding and financial status.

SCHEDULE STATUS

I-580 Westbound Express Lane Project Schedule:

Project Approval August 2013
Civil Design Completion April 2014

Begin Construction June 2014

End Construction November 2015
(Civil and System Integrator)

R:A\AIaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140714\4.2_580_Express_Monthly_Update\4.2B_I580WBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc

Page 18



4.2C

ATTACHMENT C
I-580 Express Lanes Systems Integration
Monthly Progress Report
July 2014

SYSTEM INTEGRATION SCOPE DESCRIPTION

The 1-580 Express Lane civil contract will construct the necessary infrastructure, such as
signing, sign gantries for dynamic messaging and toll reading, electrical conduit for
connecting power and communication sources and pavement striping to
accommodate express lanes. The System Integrator will include tolling hardware design
and software development, factory testing of design, equipment and system
installation and road geometry and toll system integration. It will also consist of field
testing of the toll equipment and all subsystems including the interfaces to the Bay Area
Toll Authority Regional Customer Service Center and Caltrans prior to implementing the
new express lanes.

Detailed Discussion

The systems integration focuses on the most recent technologies including software,
hardware and traffic detection that will be deployed to optimize the existing corridor
capacity in order to effectively manage the current and forecasted fraffic in the
corridor. The system integrator, however, will continue to own the software while the
implementing agency will pay for a license to allow for the use of the toll integrator’s
software.

ETC Corporation (ETCC), the project toll system integrator, has been updating the
electronic toll system design to support the “near continuous” access configuration in
both directions of I-580. The “near continuous” concept provides additional access
opportunities while reducing the foot-print required for implementing a shared
express/general purpose lane facility. In addition, it looks and feels similar to an HOV
facility and, therefore, is expected to provide driver familiarity.

Project Geometry and Electronic Toll System Design
The latest version of the express lanes concept proposes the following:

In the eastbound 1-580 direction:

» Buffer separated single-lane HOV/Express Lane will be installed from Hacienda Drive
to Fallon Road

e Continuous access dual-lane HOV/Express Lane will be installed from Fallon Road to
west of Vasco Road

* Continuous access single-lane HOV/Express Lane will be installed from west of Vasco
Road to Greenville Road

In the westbound |-580 direction:
* Continuous access single-lane HOV/Express Lane will be installed from Greenville
Road to Hacienda Drive

R:A\AIaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140714\4.2_580_Express_Monthly_Update\4.2C_I580ExpressLaneSystemlintegration.doc

Page 19



* A buffer separated single-lane HOV/Express Lane will be installed from Hacienda
Drive to the |-580/1-680 Interchange

PROJECT STATUS

Software and hardware design

ETCC staff has been preparing a Detailed Design Document (DDD) for submittal by
mid-August for review and approval by Alameda CTC. Subsequent to DDD approval
by Alameda CTC, they will perform a series of factory and field tests and work with the
agency staff to validate its hardware and software design, prior to opening the new
express lanes facility.

Toll Pricing and Rate Publishing

As discussed in previous meetings, for practical purposes and to curtail toll violation,
zone-based tolling has been included in the design to effectively support the “near
confinuous” access configuration. The zone-based toll rates will be displayed to
patrons via the Dynamic Message Signs.

Toll Antennas, Readers and Violation Enforcement Subsystem

The toll gantries will be placed at approximately % mile intervals. Closely spaced toll
antennas and readers will help facilitate a “near continuous” access express lane
configuration since it will lead to an effective FasTrak® transponder read. It should also
support more effective toll violation enforcement.

As discussed previously, the system design includes an automated toll violation
enforcement to effectively manage toll violations in this “near continuous” access
express lane facility.

Agency staff are also working to deploy a comprehensive public education/outreach
program to support the implementation of a “near continuous” access configuration
and the use of switchable transponders, which will be new to Bay Area toll customers.

The Golden Gate Bridge Authority implemented another payment option, payment
through pay-by-plate. The user is required to open up an account to pay via their
license plate. Our initial assessment indicates that this payment option is likely to
encounter challenges since it will be difficult to distinguish the HOV and SOV users in an
open/shared express lane facility, unless every vehicle is required to register as either an
HOV or SOV venhicle. Staff will continue to evaluate and collaborate with other toll
operators and report back to the committee on whether or not the 1-580 Express Lanes
will employ such a payment option.

In summary, even though the “near continuous” access concept provides additional
opportunities it is a relatively new concept for implementation in the region. Staffis
committed to working closely with other like-minded agencies/industry experts o move
forward and implement an effective electronic toll collection system strategy to
effectively support a “near continuous” access express lane configuration.

R:A\AIaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140714\4.2_580_Express_Monthly_Update\4.2C_I580ExpressLaneSystemlintegration.doc

Page 20



RECENT ACTIVITIES

o Staff reviewed and provided comments to ETC Corporation on the Preliminary
Design Document and other deliverables related to electronic toll system design
based on a near continuous access configuration, “zone tolling” and automated
violation enforcement

UPCOMING ACTIVITIES

e ETCC to complete a DDD for accommodating “zone tolling” and automated
violation enforcement by mid-August 2014.

e Continue the public outreach and marketing campaign efforts

o Complete a draft customer services agreement for collecting tolls and processing
toll violation enforcement services by summer 2014

FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS

Combined Eastbound & Westbound Funding Plan for “near continuous” access

Project Funding Source ($ million)

A ARRA  Federal  RM2 TVIC TCRP Local Total
Earmark Deferred (Meas. B)

PA&ED 1.39 2.17 0.10 3.66

PS&E 0.70 0.11 0.93 3.10 4.84

Sys. Int. 6.80 0.68 1.47 8.05 17.00

ROW 0.37 0.37

Const. 2.55 0.05 1.47 4.07

Support

Construct 1.00 0.63 1.28 21.65 24.56

Cap

O&M 0.48 0.48

TOTAL 7.50 1.00 4.05 4.78 6.0 31.65 54.98

Total Project Cost: $54.98M

R:A\AIaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140714\4.2_580_Express_Monthly_Update\4.2C_I580ExpressLaneSystemlintegration.doc

Page 21



This page intentionally left blank

Page 22



2UD7 $s21dX] BUDT-Z SS822V SNONUILUOD E

U7 ssaldX] SUDT-| $S8DDY SNONUILUOD I

auD7 ssa1dx] subI-| paipindas Jaying

)

—T . [©JoWlIBAT

\\
b o
o)
A2
(N
2
9

S Vasco Rd

Greenvilki Rd

N Livermore Ave

&
\‘1\‘\\

LOISSILLILIOD)
uoyopodsuni) AjunoD

VAIWYIY
Ly

W

70

Hodury [pdidunyy
SIOWIBAI

ulignd

/)

dew uoneoso s1oalold aueq ssaidx3 08G-|



This page intentionally left blank

Page 24



__."‘ilf/////
- ALAMEDA Memorandum 4.3

= County Transportation
%, Commission 1111 Broadway, Suite 800, Ockland, CA 94607 -  PH: (510) 208-7400 -  www.AlamedaCTC.org
A

’.‘--.._

Yoo, T “\\\\

DATE: July 7, 2014
SUBJECT: I-580 Express Lanes Education and Outreach Update

RECOMMENDATION: Receive education and outreach update.

Summary

Alameda CTC will open new |-580 Express Lanes in fall 2015. Launching the 1-580 Express
Lanes will once again place Alameda County on the leading edge of creating new
transportation choices for Bay Area travelers. Preparing and educating the public for the
express lanes on 1-580 involves an integrated education and communications program that
will result in positive word of mouth for the project, safe and proper use of the lanes, and a
model for future projects. Education and outreach planning has commenced, including a
research element and review of the draft outreach plan.

Background

In December 2013, the Alameda CTC Commission approved the execution of a contract for
[-580 Express Lanes Public Outreach and Education Services provided by Frank Wilson and

Associates (FW&A), who have considerable experience promoting the benefits of managed
lanes, and did similar work for the Commission for the 1-680 Southbound Express Lane facility.

The I-580 Public Education and Outreach contract includes the following tasks:

1. Finalize the implement Public Outreach and Education Plan
a. Examination of perceptions and concerns, and recommendations of solutions
to support success of the lanes;
b. Development of messaging strategy and materials
c. Robust pre-launch, launch and post-opening outreach and education to
commuters, business and media

2. Post-Opening Education and Outreach Report

RA\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140714\4.3_1580_EL_Education_Outreach\4.3 |-
580_Express_Lanes_Education_and_Outreach_Update_20140625.docx

Page 25



Task 1 is currently underway and began with a review of the Draft Outreach and Education
Plan and the development and implementation of a research plan. This research allows
Alameda CTC to understand the deeper attitudes and values that affect driver behavior to
enable the best targeting and greatest impact of our outreach and messaging.

In order to efficiently determine user perceptions of Express Lanes in the Bay Area, particularly
as they relate to facilities being developed by Alameda CTC, FW&A conducted four two-
hour, in-depth focus groups each consisting of 10 participants including 1-580 FasTrak users
and non-FasTrak commuters, carpool and transit users, and the general non-commuter
driving public. This research tool allows FW&A to probe and understand the deeper attitudes
and values that may be driving behavior. Following the focus groups, FW&A created and
conducted a statistically projectable telephone survey in which to administer an
approximately 15-minute interview to a randomly chosen sample of people in the |-580
corridor area, to determine the percentages of people who understand, believe, and act as
they do.

At the September 8, 2014 Committee Meeting FW&A will provide a report and presentation
on the research findings, and how they will be used to inform outreach and education to
support the use of the I-580 Express Lanes.

Next Steps

Staff will bring outreach and education updates to the 1-580 Express Lane Policy Committee
throughout the coming year as we plan and implement public education and outreach
tasks to ensure the successful launch and use of the |1-580 Express Lanes. Topics will include:

Research findings - September 8, 2014 Meeting

Education and outreach implementation and regional coordination -January 2015
Transponder user education and marketing — Spring 2015

Outreach and education for Express Lanes launch — Summer 2015

5. Update on launch activities — Fall 2015

Ll A

Additionally, Alameda CTC staff and consultants participate monthly in the regional Express
Lanes Public Information Working Group (PIWG) to ensure region-wide coordination and
success of the entire “Bay Area Express Lanes” network, and will update the Committee on
these efforts, including branding, a website portal and coordinated messaging.

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact.

Staff Contact

Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy

Heather Barber, Communications Manager

R:\AIaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140714\4.3_I580_EL_Education_Outreach\4.3 |-
580_Express_Lanes_Education_and_Outreach_Update_20140625.docx

Page 26


mailto:tlengyel@alamedactc.org
mailto:hbarber@alamedactc.org

	I-580_PC_Meeting_Template
	hyperlinked_I580_PC_Agenda_20140714
	DRAFT_580PC_Packet_20140714
	3.1_Combo
	4.1_Combo
	4.1_I580HOV_Progress_Report
	4.1A_I580EBHOVLaneStatusUpdate
	4.1B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate
	4.1C_I-580CorridorProjects_LocationMap

	4.2_Combo
	4.2_I580Express_HOT_SI_ProgressRpt
	4.2A_I580EBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate
	4.2B_I580WBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate
	4.2C_I580ExpressLaneSystemIntegration
	4.2D_I580Express_LocationMap

	4.3_Combo



<<

  /ASCII85EncodePages false

  /AllowTransparency false

  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true

  /AutoRotatePages /None

  /Binding /Left

  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)

  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)

  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error

  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4

  /CompressObjects /Tags

  /CompressPages true

  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true

  /PassThroughJPEGImages true

  /CreateJobTicket false

  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default

  /DetectBlends true

  /DetectCurves 0.0000

  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK

  /DoThumbnails false

  /EmbedAllFonts true

  /EmbedOpenType false

  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true

  /EmbedJobOptions true

  /DSCReportingLevel 0

  /EmitDSCWarnings false

  /EndPage -1

  /ImageMemory 1048576

  /LockDistillerParams false

  /MaxSubsetPct 100

  /Optimize true

  /OPM 1

  /ParseDSCComments true

  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true

  /PreserveCopyPage true

  /PreserveDICMYKValues true

  /PreserveEPSInfo true

  /PreserveFlatness true

  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false

  /PreserveOPIComments true

  /PreserveOverprintSettings true

  /StartPage 1

  /SubsetFonts true

  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply

  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve

  /UsePrologue false

  /ColorSettingsFile ()

  /AlwaysEmbed [ true

  ]

  /NeverEmbed [ true

  ]

  /AntiAliasColorImages false

  /CropColorImages true

  /ColorImageMinResolution 300

  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleColorImages true

  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /ColorImageResolution 300

  /ColorImageDepth -1

  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1

  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeColorImages true

  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterColorImages true

  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /ColorACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /ColorImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasGrayImages false

  /CropGrayImages true

  /GrayImageMinResolution 300

  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleGrayImages true

  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /GrayImageResolution 300

  /GrayImageDepth -1

  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2

  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeGrayImages true

  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterGrayImages true

  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /GrayACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /GrayImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasMonoImages false

  /CropMonoImages true

  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200

  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleMonoImages true

  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /MonoImageResolution 1200

  /MonoImageDepth -1

  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeMonoImages true

  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode

  /MonoImageDict <<

    /K -1

  >>

  /AllowPSXObjects false

  /CheckCompliance [

    /None

  ]

  /PDFX1aCheck false

  /PDFX3Check false

  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false

  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true

  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true

  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()

  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()

  /PDFXOutputCondition ()

  /PDFXRegistryName ()

  /PDFXTrapped /False



  /CreateJDFFile false

  /Description <<



    /BGR <>

    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>

    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>

    /CZE <>

    /DAN <>

    /DEU <>

    /ESP <>

    /ETI <>

    /FRA <>

    /GRE <>



    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)

    /HUN <>

    /ITA <>

    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>

    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>

    /LTH <>

    /LVI <>

    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)

    /NOR <>

    /POL <>

    /PTB <>

    /RUM <>

    /RUS <>

    /SKY <>

    /SLV <>

    /SUO <>

    /SVE <>

    /TUR <>

    /UKR <>

    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)

  >>

  /Namespace [

    (Adobe)

    (Common)

    (1.0)

  ]

  /OtherNamespaces [

    <<

      /AsReaderSpreads false

      /CropImagesToFrames true

      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue

      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false

      /IncludeGuidesGrids false

      /IncludeNonPrinting false

      /IncludeSlug false

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (InDesign)

        (4.0)

      ]

      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false

      /OmitPlacedEPS false

      /OmitPlacedPDF false

      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy

    >>

    <<

      /AddBleedMarks false

      /AddColorBars false

      /AddCropMarks false

      /AddPageInfo false

      /AddRegMarks false

      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK

      /DestinationProfileName ()

      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /Downsample16BitImages true

      /FlattenerPreset <<

        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution

      >>

      /FormElements false

      /GenerateStructure false

      /IncludeBookmarks false

      /IncludeHyperlinks false

      /IncludeInteractive false

      /IncludeLayers false

      /IncludeProfiles false

      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (CreativeSuite)

        (2.0)

      ]

      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /PreserveEditing true

      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged

      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile

      /UseDocumentBleed false

    >>

  ]

>> setdistillerparams

<<

  /HWResolution [2400 2400]

  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]

>> setpagedevice





